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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  



Statement
of Balance
Sheet

Statement of
Profit & Loss
Account

Cash Flow
Statement

Statement of
Changes in
Equity [SOCIE]

Notes to
Financial
Statement

Attendance
Slip

7932nd Annual Report 2024-25

Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 item of Property plant and equipment are added to its books value only if they increase 
the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of 
performance and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of 
any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced.

 
 Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss as and when incurred.

 The cost of dismantling and restoration of Leasehold Land, being uncertain, is not 
estimated and therefore no recognition to the cost of Leasehold Land is made in this 
regard.

 Any item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
charged to revenue in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

 The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial 
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset. 

4. Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development 
 
 Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development represents 

expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects/intangible assets under development 
and are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/ 
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

5. Investment Properties
 
 Investment properties comprise of Immovable Property that are held for rental yield 

and/or capital appreciation. 

 Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs 
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the 
asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as and when 
incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised.

6. Intangible Assets

 Intangible asset is recognized only where it is probable that future economic benefits 
attributable to the asset will accrue to the enterprise and cost can be measured reliably. 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

 Acquired Intangible Assets in the form of “Process Know How” is recognized at the cost of  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 acquisition and amortized on straight line basis over a period of five years, depending on 
their estimated useful life. 

 Research and development:

 Expenditure on research activities undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific 
or technical knowledge and understanding are recognised as an expense when incurred. 
Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially 
improved products and processes. An internally generated intangible asset arising from 
development is recognised if and only if all of the following have been demonstrated:

 • development costs can be measured reliably;
 • the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;
 • future economic benefits are probable; 
 • and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development 

and to use or sell the asset.

 Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the intangible asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the intangible asset) is recognised in the statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

 Mining Lease Right
 
 Company has acquired mining lease rights under agreement with the state government 

of Andhra Pradesh (“government”).

 The costs of mining properties and leases, during exploration and evaluation stage, which 
include the costs of acquiring and developing mining properties and mineral rights, are 
capitalized as property, plant and equipment under the heading ‘Mining Lease Rights’ in 
the year in which they are incurred. Until the company receives approval from the 
government for mining, these assets are classified as capital work in progress. During this 
exploration and evaluation stage, mining expenditure is subjected to impairment review 
on an event of indication of impairment and any impairment loss is recognized in profit 
and loss prior to stage of reclassification (from capital work in progress to cost of mining 
property)

 After the approval is received from the government for mining, all expenditure incurred till 
that stage is transferred from capital work in progress and capitalized. The same is 
amortized on straight line method over a period of mining lease agreement with the 
government.

 Mining property, within the period of mining lease agreement, is subjected to annual 
impairment review. Any impairment loss is immediately recognized in profit and loss.

 
 Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred prior to obtaining the mining right or the 

legal right to explore are expensed as incurred.
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 Exploration expenditure includes all direct and allocated indirect expenditure associated 
with finding specific mineral resources which includes depreciation and applicable 
operating costs of related support equipment and facilities and other costs of 
exploration activities:

(i) Acquisition costs – costs associated with acquisition of licenses and rights to explore, 
including related professional fees.

(ii) General exploration costs – costs of surveys and studies, rights of access to properties to 
conduct those studies (e.g., costs incurred for environment clearance, defense 
clearance, etc.), and salaries and other expenses of geologists, geophysical crews and 
other personnel conducting those studies.

(iii) Costs of exploratory drilling and equipping exploratory and appraisal wells.

7. Depreciation and amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values.

 Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and 
Capital work-in- progress) less their residual values on straight-line method over their 
useful lives of the assets.

 The estimate of the useful life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice 
which considers the nature of the asset, the usage of the asset, expected physical wear 
and tear, the operating conditions of the asset, anticipated technological changes, 
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc. The management believes 
that these useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which 
the assets are likely to be used. The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each 
financial year end and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised 
depreciable amount (remaining net value of assets) is charged over the revised 
remaining useful lives.

 Based on management estimate, residual value of 5% is considered for respective 
tangible assets except Lease hold land.

 Intangible assets are amortized over their individual estimated useful lives on a 
Straight-Line basis, commencing from the year in which the same are available to the 
company for its intended use. The useful lives as estimated by the management for the 
intangible assets are as follows: 

 a)    Process Know How (Product Development)         5 Years
 b)    Mine Development                                                                       5 Years

 Cost of lease-hold land is amortized equally over the period of lease.
 
 The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 

equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively if 
appropriate.

 
 Component accounting of assets: If significant parts of an item of property, plant and 

equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items   
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 (major components) of property, plant and equipment and accordingly depreciated at 
the useful lives.

 Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during 
the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal.

 Investment properties are depreciated based on the useful life prescribed in Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013.

8. Impairment of non-financial assets

 At the balance sheet date, non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment losses 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable.  For assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If 
any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash 
generating unit is made. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair 
value less cost to sell and value in use. To calculate value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market rates and the risk specific to the asset. For an asset that does not 
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Fair value less cost to sell is the best estimate of the 
amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of disposal. Assets whose carrying value 
exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and 
its value in use. 

 Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication 
that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no 
longer exist or may have decreased.

 Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued 
with the revaluation surplus taken to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). For such 
properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous 
revaluation surplus.

9. Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a 
transaction flows to the Company in the ordinary course of its activities and the amount 
of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates 
allowed by the Company. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking 
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each 
arrangement.
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 Revenue includes only the gross inflows of economic benefits. Amounts collected on 
behalf of third parties such as Goods and Service Tax, Sales Tax and Value Added Tax are 
excluded from revenue.

 Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Company transfers all the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, while the company retains neither 
continuing managerial involvement nor effective control over the product sold. No 
significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be 
derived from the sale of goods, amount of sale can be measured reliably, and the cost 
incurred and to be incurred can be measured reliably. 

 Export benefits available under the prevalent schemes are recognized when there exists 
no significant uncertainty regards to its realisation.

 Interest is recognised using Effective Interest Rate method as set out in Ind AS 109. 

 Dividend income is recognised, when the right to receive payment is established. 

 Royalty income is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the 
agreement.

 Investment property rental income is recognised as revenue on accrual basis as per the 
terms of the underlying contract with customers.

 Other operating income and misc. income are accounted on accrual basis as and when 
the right to receive arises.

10. Borrowing

 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. 
Borrowings –interest bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost by 
using the effective interest method (EIR method). Any difference between the proceeds 
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over 
the period of borrowing using the effective interest method (EIR). The EIR Amortization is 
included as Finance Costs in the statement of profit and loss.

 Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of 
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all the facility will be draw down.  In this 
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence 
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is deferred as 
a payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it 
relates.

 Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying 
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party 
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or other expenses as well as 
through the EIR amortization process.
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional 
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 
Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or 
before the end of reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on 
demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if 
the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial 
statement for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

11. Borrowing Cost

 The Company is capitalising general and specific borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset up to the date of 
commissioning. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of 
time to get ready for their intended use or sale. The Expenses incurred in connection with 
the arrangement of specific borrowings are capitalized over the period of the borrowing 
and every year such cost is apportioned to assets based on the actual amount borrowed 
during the year. All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in 
which they are incurred and charged to the statement of profit and loss.

 Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalisation.

12. Financial Instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

12.1  Financial Asset
 Initial Recognition
 
 A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the balance sheet only when, the 

Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 Initial Measurement
 
 At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset or financial liability at its 

fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

 Subsequent Measurement

 For purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into:

• Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
• Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
• Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 The Company classifies its financial assets in the above-mentioned categories based on:

• The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets, and
• The contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are 
met:

• The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

• The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding.

 Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. 

 A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both 
of the following conditions are met:

• The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting the contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

• The assets contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

 A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at 
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. In addition, the 
Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized 
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so 
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 
‘accounting mismatch’).

Equity Investments:
 
 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value except investment 

in Subsidiary. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For 
all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present 
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company 
makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on 
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

 The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present 
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity 
investments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument 
basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity investments.
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 
equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value 
with all changes recognized in the Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
 
 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 

similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's 
balance sheet) when:

 1. The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or

 2. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

 • The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

 • The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

 
 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 

entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, 
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the 
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a 
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

 Impairment of Financial Assets
 
 The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the 

following:

 • Financial assets measured at amortised cost
 • Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

 Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

 • The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those 
default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 reporting date); or

 • Full time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible 
default events over the life of the financial instrument).

 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance 
on trade receivables or contract revenue receivables. Under the simplified approach, the 
Company is not required to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment 
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs together with appropriate management estimates 
for credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

 The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the 
portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed 
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward 
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are 
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. 

 ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized 
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the 
head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation 
for various financial instruments is described below:

 • Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue 
receivables - ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net 
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not 
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

 • Financial assets measured at FVTOCI - Since financial assets are already reflected 
at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL 
amount is presented as accumulated impairment amount in the OCI.

 For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines 
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective 
of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to 
be identified on a timely basis.

 The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) 
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

12.2  Financial Liabilities
 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as 
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loan and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial 
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

 • Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
 • Financial liabilities subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for 
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading 
are recognised in the profit or loss.

 Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss 
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to 
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently 
transferred to Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or 
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at 
fair value through profit and loss.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

 Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a 
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified 
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair 
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the 
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss 
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount 
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Loan and Borrowings

 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and 
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are   
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

12.3  Offsetting financial instruments

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, 
insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

13. Fair Value 

 The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet 
date.

 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either:

 • In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
 • In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset 

or liability.

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The 
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as under, based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

 • Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.

 • Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

 • Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is unobservable.

 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

 The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring 
fair value measurement, such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and 
for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued 
operations. The management comprises of the Managing Director and Chief Financial 
Officer.

 External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted 
financial assets. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the 
Valuation Committee after discussion with and approval by the management. Selection 
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. Valuers are normally rotated every three years. The 
management decides, after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which 
valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

 At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of 
assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the 
Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major 
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation.

 The management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares 
the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to 
determine whether the change is reasonable.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets 
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability 
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

 This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures 
are given in the relevant notes. (refer note 6.38)

 1. Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions.
 2. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy.
 3. Investment in unquoted equity shares.
 4. Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost).

14. Inventories

 Raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing materials, stores, spares, 
components, consumables and stock-in trade are carried at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in production of 
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished goods in which they will be 
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net 
realizable value is made on an item-by item basis.

 In determining the cost of raw materials, packing materials, stock-in-trade, stores, spares, 
components and consumables, weighted average cost method is used. Cost of inventory  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently 
recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to 
their present location and condition.

 Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of raw materials, packing 
materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Fixed 
production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production 
facilities.

15. Foreign Currency Transactions

15.1  Functional and Presentation Currency
 
 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional 
currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the 
functional and presentation currency of the Company.

15.2  Transactions and balances
 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the 

exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end exchange rates 
are generally recognised in profit or loss.

 All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on 
a net basis within other income or other expenses.

 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. 
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation 
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair 
value gain or loss.

16. Employee Benefits

 Employees Benefits are provided in the books as per Ind AS -19 on “Employee Benefits” in 
the following manner:

16.1  Post-Employment Benefit Plans

 Defined Contribution Plan

 Defined contribution plans are employee state insurance scheme and Government 
administered pension fund scheme for all applicable employees and superannuation  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 scheme for eligible employees. The Company does not carry any other obligation apart 
from the monthly contribution.

 The Company recognizes contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the employees render services to the 
Company during the reporting period. If the contributions payable for services received 
from employees before the reporting date exceeds the contributions already paid, the 
deficit payable is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If 
the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before 
the reporting date, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the 
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plans

 The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees in 
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, through an approved Gratuity Fund. 
The Gratuity Fund is separately administered through a Trust/Scheme. Contributions in 
respect of gratuity are made to the approved Gratuity Fund.

 All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest 
on the defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) comprising actuarial gains 
and losses and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income. Such remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the subsequent periods.

 The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the 
Balance Sheet as per actuarial valuation by the independent actuary; however, the entire 
liability towards gratuity is considered as current as the Company will contribute this 
amount to the gratuity fund within the next twelve months.

16.2  Short Term Employee Benefits

 The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for services rendered by employees is recognized during the period when the 
employee renders the services. Short term employee benefits include salary and wages, 
bonus, incentive and ex-gratia and also includes accrued leave benefits, which are 
expected to be availed or en-cashed within 12 months from the end of the year.
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

17. Leases

 A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

(A) Lease Liability

 At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be 
discounted using incremental borrowing rate.

(B)  Right-of-use assets

 Initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the 
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.

Subsequent measurement

(A)  Lease Liability

 Company measure the lease liability by (a) increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 
payments made; and (c) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment 
or lease modifications.

(B)  Right-of-use assets

 Subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line 
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the under lying asset.

Impairment

 Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value 
less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless 
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit 
(CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Short term Lease:

 Short term lease is that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or 
less. A lease that contains a purchase option is not a short-term lease. If the company 
elected to apply short term lease, the lessee shall recognise the lease payments   



Corporate
Information

From The
Managing
Director’s Desk

Notice of The
Annual General
Meeting

Financial
Performance

Board’s
Report

Report On
Corporate
Governance

Independent
Auditor’s
Report

94

Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease 
term or another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if that 
basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit.

 As a lessor

 Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases.

 Lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis over 
the lease term.

18. Taxation
 Tax expenses is the aggregate amount of current tax i.e. amount of tax for the period 

determined in accordance with the Income Tax Law and deferred tax (reflecting the tax 
effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the 
period). Income tax expenses are recognised in statement of profit or loss except tax 
expenses related to items recognised directly in reserves (including statement of other 
comprehensive income) which are recognised with the underlying items.

18.1 Current Tax

 The current tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's 
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by 
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to 
unused tax losses.

 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e. as per the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation 
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

 Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance 
sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax 
jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units and where the Company is able to and intends to 
settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

18.2  Deferred Taxes

 Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary difference arising between the tax bases of 
the assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements at the 
reporting date. Deferred taxes are recognised in respect of deductible temporary 
differences being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that 
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods., 
the carry forward of unused tax losses and the carry forward of unused tax credits. 
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when 
the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is 
settled.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused 
tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those 
temporary differences and losses. In case of temporary differences that arise from initial 
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that 
affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not 
recognised. 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered.

 Any tax credit available including Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under the provision of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised. 
The said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown 
under the head deferred tax asset. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the 
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

 Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates 
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the 
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

19. Earnings Per Share

 Basic earnings per share
 
 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the 

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the company's earnings per share is the net 
profit for the period after deducting preference dividends, if any, and any attributable 
distribution tax thereto for the period. 

 Diluted earnings per share

 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings 
per share to take into account the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number 
of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion 
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

20. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision for contractual 
obligation is disclosed based on management's assessment of the probable outcome 
with reference to the available information supplemented by experience of similar 
transactions. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is 
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit 
and loss net of any reimbursement.

 Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, 
penalties etc. are recognised when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the 
amount can be estimated reliably.

 Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

 Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be 
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A 
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item 
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

 Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period and are not discounted to 
present value. The estimates of outcome and financial effect are determined by the 
judgment of the management, supplemented by experience of similar transactions and, 
in some cases, reports from independent experts.

 The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising 
from the restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not 
associated with the ongoing activities of the Company.

 Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

 1. A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

 2. A present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is 
possible;

 3. A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow 
of resources is remote.

 Contingent liabilities are not provided for and if material, are disclosed by way of notes to 
financial statements. 
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence 
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

 Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the 
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, Contingent assets are 
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will 
arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change 
occurs.

 A contingent asset is disclosed by way of notes to financial statements, where an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable.

 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date.

21. Segment Reporting

 The Company primarily operates in the segment of Micronized Minerals. The Managing 
Director of the Company allocate resources and assess the performance of the 
Company; thus, they are the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors 
the operating results of the business as a one, hence no separate segment needs to be 
disclosed. 

22. Cash Equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and deposits with banks and corporations. 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash 
equivalents.

 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and 
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

23. Statement of Cash Flows

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated 
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

24. Dividend to Equity Shareholders of the Company 

 The Company recognises a liability for dividends to equity holders of the Company when 
the dividend is authorised and the dividend is no longer at the discretion of the Company.  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

 Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the 
Shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration 
by the Company’s Board of Directors.

25. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the 
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from 
time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards 
or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

6.03  Capital Work-in-Progress        
         
Capital Work-in-Progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

 Particulars      Less than  1-2 Years   2-3 Years  More than Total
       1 Year    3 Years

Projects in Progress  315.99 0.0 0.0 0.0 315.99

     (33.18) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (33.18)

Projects temporarily suspended  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

     0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total CWIP  315.99 0.0 0.0 0.0 315.99

     (33.18) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (33.18)

Figures in brackets represent previous year figures

(b) Deferred tax balances and movement for the year ended March 31, 2024

 Particulars       Net balance  Recognised in  Recognised   Other As at March
       April 01, 2023 profit or loss in OCI  31, 2024

Deferred tax Liabilities          

Property, plant and equipment  227.79 8.49 0.0 0.0 236.28
and Intangible Assets

Loans and borrowings  0.86 (8.03) 0.0 0.0 (7.17)

Right to use assets  95.71 (10.37) 0.0 0.0 85.34

Total    324.36 (9.91) 0.0 0.0 314.45

Deferred tax Assets          

Employee benefits  3.81 (1.27) (1.28) 0.0 1.26

Tax credit-MAT Silicate  0.14 0.0 0.0 (0.14) 0.0

Deferred Tax Asset On Carried   18.06 (18.06) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Forward Losses-Silicate 

Provisions  8.77 0.08 0.0 0.0 8.85

Share issue expense  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Lease Liability  93.94 (6.31) 0.0 0.0 87.63

Total    124.71 (25.55) (1.28) (0.14) 97.74

Net deferred tax Liabilities  199.65 15.64 1.28 0.14 216.71

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set 
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. 

Significant management judgment is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The 
recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income by each 
jurisdiction in which the company operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets 
will be recovered.

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

  (₹  in lakhs )

Note 6.04.1
 Product Development is in respect of expenditure incurred for in house development of of 

product and recognised as intangible asset. The useful life of the product development is 
taken as 5 years.

Note 6.04.2
 The costs of mining leases, which include the costs of acquiring mineral rights, are 

capitalised as item of intangible assets under the head ‘Mining Rights’ in the year in which 
they are incurred. The useful life of Mining Rights is taken as 5 years. 

   
Note 6.04.3
 Impairment of Assets : Based on the review, the management is of the opinion that there are 

no impairment indicators that necessitate any adjustments to the carrying value of 
Intangible Assets.

Note 6.04.4
 There is no restriction on the title of intangible assets.

6.04   Intangible Assets and Right of Use Assets

A Gross Block       

 As at April 1, 2023 0.0 13.22 13.22 532.31

 Additions 0.0 5.15 5.15 165.21

 Disposals/ Adjustments  0.0 (6.90) (6.90) (109.61)

 As at  March 31, 2024 0.0 11.47 11.47 587.91

 Additions 0.0 0.0 0.0 28.10

 Disposals/ Adjustments  0.0 0.0 0.0 17.59

 As at  March 31,2025 0.0 11.47 11.47 633.60

B Accumulated amortisation and impairment        

 As at March 31, 2023 0.0 10.62 10.62 152.02

 Charge for the year  0.0 2.56 2.56 137.93

 Disposals/ Adjustments  0.0 (6.90) (6.90) (41.13)

 As at  March 31, 2024 0.0 6.27 6.27 248.82

 Charge for the year  0.0 1.45 1.45 141.29

 Disposals/ Adjustments  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

 As at  March 31,2025 0.0 7.72 7.72 390.11

C Net Book Value         

 As at April 1, 2023 (0.0) 2.60 2.60 380.30

 As at  March 31, 2024 (0.0) 5.20 5.20 339.09

 As at  March 31,2025 (0.0) 3.75 3.75 243.49

Particulars Product
Development

Mining Development
Expense

 Total  Right of
Use Assets

Intangible assets
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

6.09.1 Trade Receivable from Subsidiary of the holding company 20 MCC Pvt Limited is Nil
 (P.Y.  ₹ 27.34 lakhs) and Dorfner - 20 Microns Limited -  ₹ 18.95 lakhs ( P.Y. ₹ 6.78 lakhs ) 

6.08   Trade receivables*
Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Unsecured, Considered Good (Refer Note 6.09.1 below)   1301.14 1074.12

Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss   (16.81) (35.21)

Total    1284.33 1038.91

6.06 Other non-current assets

Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Advance for Capital Expenditure [Unsecured, considered good]   321.08 103.95

Total    321.08 103.95

6.05 Other Financial Assets

Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity      

Deposits (Liquid Asset on Public Deposits) statutorily   85.00 104.94
required by Companies Act 2013  

Margin Money deposits under lien against Bank Guarantee   0.0 25.02

Balance with Banks-Deposits   503.27 3.15

Other Financial Assets     

Security and other deposits [Unsecured, considered good]   63.77 60.44

Total    652.04 193.54 

6.07 Inventories*
Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Raw Materials  2041.44 1501.02

Finished Goods  553.43 446.43

Stock in trade  49.58 192.86

Stores and Spares  150.57 201.56

Goods in Transit  89.05 8.22

Total    2884.07 2350.09

* For Valuation- Refer note 6.02.14    
**Refer to Note 6.19 Inventories are offered as securities for borrowing by the Company 
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )6.11   Current financial assets : Loans

Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Loans to employees     7.50 7.32

Total    7.50 7.32

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

 Particulars   Less than  6 Months  1-2 Years   2-3 Years  More than Total
     6 Months - 1 Years   3 Years

(i) Undisputed Trade 1183.78 18.35 0.0 0.0 0.0 1202.13
Receivables –
Considered Goods (1036.47) (2.79) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (1039.26)

(ii) Undisputed Trade 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Receivables –
Considered Doubtful  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

(iii) Disputed Trade 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Receivables –
Considered Goods  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

(iv) Disputed Trade 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 16.78 16.78
Receivables –
Considered Doubtful 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (34.86) (34.86)

Total Trade Receivables  1183.78 18.35 0.0 0.0 16.78 1218.91

    (1036.47) (2.79) 0.0 0.0 (34.86) (1074.12)

Figures in brackets represent previous year figures 

6.09   Current financial assets : Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Balance with banks - Current accounts   650.81 728.04

Cash on hand   0.0 0.0

Total    650.81 728.04

6.10   Current financial assets : Other 
Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than
3 months but less than 12 months      

Deposits (Refer Note-6.11.1, 6.11.2 & 6.11.3 below)  312.08 602.90

Margin Money deposits under lien against Bank Guarantee   45.87 10.28
(Refer Note-6.11.1 below)

Total    357.95 613.18

Note 6.11.1: Bank deposits earns interest at fixed rate based on respective deposit rate.

Note 6.11.2: The balance is held as Liquid Asset for Deposits accepted from memebers and ruled
made thereunder the Companies Act 2013.

Note 6.11.3: Bank deposits of Rs 300 Lakhs are marked as lien. 
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Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

6.12 Other current assets

Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Advances [Unsecured, considered good]     

Advance to Suppliers   216.62 98.98

Prepaid Expenses   25.83 21.28

Insurance Claim Receivable*   8.37 8.37

Balance with government authority   161.18 43.65

Sales Tax Paid Under Protest   8.14 8.14

Other Current Assets   0.0 3.97

Total    420.14 184.39

*Recovery of the amount of Insurance Claim Receivable is uncertain on account of Opponent
advancing in further litigation 

6.13   Share Capital 

Note 6.13.1 

Authorised, issued, subscribed, and paid up share capital

Particulars     As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2025
     No. of shares   Amount  No. of shares   Amount

Authorised         

Equity Shares of ₹10 each 20,000,000  2000.00  20,000,000 2000.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up         

Equity Shares of ₹10 each fully paid up 8,970,020  897.00  8,970,020 897.00

Total                  8,970,020  897.00  8,970,020  897.00

Note 6.13.2

A. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars     As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2025
    Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid 
     No. of shares   Amount  No. of shares   Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 8,970,020  897.00  8,970,020 897.00

Add: Shares issued during the period  - -  - .0

Add: Shares bought back during the period - -  - .0

Less: Shares cancelled during the period - -  - .0

Shares outstanding at the end of the period 8,970,020  897.00  8,970,020 897.00
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  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

Name of Shareholder       As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2025
 No.of Shares held  % of Holding   No.of Shares held  % of Holding

Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid         

20 Microns Limited ( Holding Company) 8,720,000  97.21% 8,720,000  97.21%

Total  8,720,000  97.21% 8,720,000  97.21%

B.  Other Disclosures
Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

i. Every holder of an equity share as reflected in the records of the Company on the date of the 
shareholders meeting shall have one vote in respect of each share held for all matter 
submitted to vote in a shareholders meeting of the company.

ii. Any dividend declared by the company shall be paid to each holder of Equity shares in 
proportion to the number of shares held to total equity shares outstanding as on that date. 
In the event of liquidation of the Company all preferential amounts if any shall be discharged 
by the Company. The remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the holders of 
equity shares in proportion of the number of shares held to the total equity.

C. Shareholders holding more than 5 % of total share capital

D. Disclosures of Shareholding of Promoters - Shares held by the Promoters:

Name of Promoter As at March  As at March 
 31, 2025  31, 2025   % Change
 No.of % of No.of % of during the
 Shares held Holding Shares held Holding year

Ilaben Chandresh Parikh 200,000 2.23% 200,000 2.23% 0.00%

Atil Chandresh Parikh & Purvi Atil Parikh 28,250 0.31% 28,250 0.31% 0.00%

Rajesh Chandresh Parikh 116 0.00% 116 0.00% 0.00%

Rajesh Chandresh Parikh & Sejal Rajesh Parikh 10 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%

Atil Chandresh Parikh 5 0.00% 5 0.00% 0.00%

Total 228,381  2.55% 228,381  2.55%  

Note 6.13.3

 The Company has not bought back any equity shares, not allotted any shares as fully paid up 
pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash and has not allotted bonus 
shares,  for the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2025
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  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

Note 6.01 – Corporate Information
  
20 Microns Nano Mineral Limited ("Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 9 – 10, GIDC, Waghodia, Vadodara – 391760, Gujarat, India.

The Company is engaged in processing and selling of Specialty Chemicals (Functional 
Additives -FA and Chemically Modified Minerals –CMM), Soft Minerals (SM) and Hard Minerals 
(HM) and are used in industries such as paints and coatings, printing inks, plastics and 
polymers, rubber, ceramics, foundry, paper, adhesives, cosmetics, construction, agro 
chemicals, chemical and pharmaceuticals, textile, oil-well drilling, filtration.

The reporting currency is Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs and amounts are rounded off to the 
nearest decimals thereof.

Note 6.02 – Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(a) Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act and read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
 
 These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 

convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

2. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 
 The presentation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS which 

requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates 
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ 
from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to 
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk  
of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the 
following notes:

 Note 6.34:- Current/deferred tax expense

 Note 6.37:- Contingent liabilities and assets

 Note 6.08:- Expected credit loss for receivables

 Note 6.40:- Measurement of defined benefit obligations

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of Property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured at their 
cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost 
of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially 
different from that of the remaining item.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price 
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the 
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost 
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and 
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

 Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. 

 Subsequent expenditures, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an  

Particulars        As at     As at 
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Reserves & Surplus    

Securities Premium Account    

Opening Balance  332.26 332.26

Add: received during the Period  0.0 0.0

Share issue expenditure - Deferred Tax  0.0 0.0

Closing Balance  332.26 332.26

Surplus in Profit and Loss account    

Opening balance  3201.04 2872.97

Profit for the year  557.16 324.40

Other Comprehensive Income:    

Add: Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation (Net Of Tax) (3.32) 3.81

Add: Equity Instruments Through Other Comprehensive Income (Net Of Tax) 0.0 0.0

Less: MAT Credit Written Off  0.0 (0.14)

Total    3754.88 3201.04

Less : Appropriations    

Dividend   0.0 0.0

Closing Balance  3754.88 3201.04

Total other equity    4087.14 3533.31

6.14   Other Equity

Particulars     As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2025
    Non-Current Current*  Non-Current Current*  

Secured         

Term Loan from Banks ( Refer Note No. 6.15.1) 458.58    -

Unsecured         

Deposits - From Members ( Refer Note No. 6.16.1) 12.43 133.20  47.85 380.82

TOTAL [A] 471.01 133.20  47.85 380.82

6.15   Non Current Financial Liabilities: Borrowings

Note 6.15.1  Secured (Repayable on demand and Rate of interest is BRLLR plus Strategic Premium
plus Concessional ROI-8.40%)

Primary Security: Collateral Fixed Deposit, Debtors, Fixed Deposit, Plant & Machinery, Stock
Collateral Securtiy: Exclusive Charge over Factory Land Building 
Collateral Securtiy: Land And Building situated at Plot No 9,10 & 11 Waghodia Road 
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  (₹  in lakhs )

6.16.1   Maturity Profile Unsecured Deposits
Effective Interest Rate 7.0% to 10 %

Year   (₹  in Lakhs )

2025-26  285.88

2026-27  133.20

2027-28  12.43

Particulars     As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2025
    Non-Current Current*  Non-Current Current*  

Unsecured           

Lease Liability  135.61 130.71  229.11 119.08

Total     135.61 130.71  229.11 119.08

6.16   Non Current Financial Liabilities: Lease Liabilities

6.17  Non-Current Provisions 
Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

(a) Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 6.40) 

Provision for leave encashment   11.05 9.98

Total    11.05 9.98
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  (₹  in lakhs )6.19  Current financial liabilities : Borrowings
Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Secured (Repayable on demand)      

Loan from Banks (Cash credit / Bank Overdraft) (Refer Note 6.15.1)  2296.82 1474.02

Unsecured

Deposits     

From Members (Refer Note 6.19.1)   285.88 46.05

Total    2582.70 1520.07

Note 6.19.1

 The Company does not have any continuing defaults in repayment of loans and interest 
as at the reporting date. 

6.18  Deferred tax Liabilities    
         
(a) Deferred tax balances and movement for the year ended March 31, 2025

 Particulars       Net balance  Recognised in  Recognised   Other As at March
       April 01, 2024 profit or loss in OCI  31, 2025

Deferred tax Liabilities          

Property, plant and equipment  236.28 21.17 0.0 0.0 257.45
and Intangible Assets

Loans and borrowings  (7.17) 8.02 0.0 0.0 0.85

Right to use assets  85.34 (24.06) 0.0 0.0 61.28

Total    314.45 5.13 0.0 0.0 319.59

Deferred tax Assets          

Employee benefits  1.26 1.93 1.12 0.0 4.31

Tax credit-MAT Silicate  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Deferred Tax Asset On Carried  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Forward Losses-Silicate

Provisions  8.85 (4.62) 0.0 0.0 4.23

Lease Liability  87.63 (20.61) 0.0 0.0 67.03

Total    97.74 (23.30) 1.12 0.0 75.56

Net deferred tax Liabilities  216.71 28.43 (1.12) 0.0 244.02

Figures in brackets represent previous year figures
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  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Principal Amount due and remaining unpaid   0.0 86.02

Interest due on (1) above and unpaid interest   0.0 0.0

Interest paid on all delayed payments under MSMED Act,2006   0.0 0.0

Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year   0.0 0.0

Interest due and payable for the period of delay other than (3) above  0.0 0.0

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid   0.0 0.0

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable    0.0 0.0
in succeeding years

6.20 Current financial liabilities : Trade payables

Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and    -    86.02
small enterprises- others (Refer Note 6.20.1)                        

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises :-     
Related Parties (Refer Note 6.20.2)   5.10 (0.0)

Others    678.27 178.59

Total    683.38 264.61

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

 Particulars   Not Due   Less than  1-2 Years   2-3 Years  More than Total
       1 Year    3 Years

(i) MSME  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0                       -  
 
                (86.02) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0                  (86.02)

(ii) Others  0.0       683.38  0.0 0.0 0.0                 683.38 
 
               (99.77)        (78.82) 0.0 0.0 0.0                (178.59)

(iii) Disputed Dues – MSME  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

    0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

(iv) Disputed Dues – Others  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

    0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Trade Payables   0.0       683.38  0.0 0.0 0.0                 683.38 

        -185.80        (78.82) 0.0 0.0 0.0               (264.61)

Figures in brackets represent previous year figures

Note 6.20.1

 Undertaking covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) was determined by the Company on 
the basis of information available to the Company by respective undertaking and has been 
relied upon by the auditor. The details of amount outstanding to MSMED Act are as under:

Note 6.20.2

 Trade payable includes Trade payable to Holding Company 20 Microns Ltd is  ₹ 5.10 Lakhs  
(P.Y. ₹ NIL Lakhs ) 
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6.21   Current financial liabilities : Others

Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

Current maturities of long term borrowings - (Please refer Note 6.16):-  0.0 86.02

Deposits(Unsecured)     

-From Pubilc and Members   133.20 380.82

      133.20 380.82

Unclaimed Matured public deposits and Interest   4.00 6.00

Other financial liabilities   137.20 386.82

Lease Liability   130.71 119.08

Total    267.91 505.90

6.22   Current liabilities : Others

Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

 Advance from customer   83.60 20.27

 Statutory Dues Payable   73.98 46.01

 Other Current Liabilities     

 Employee Benefits Payable   32.20 28.66

 Other current financial liabilities   39.42 42.63

 Total   229.20 137.57

6.23 Current provisions
Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

 (a) Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 6.40)      

  Provision for gratuity   6.06 0.0

  Provision for leave encashment   0.0 0.47

 (b) Provision for Expenses   76.32 62.46

Total    82.38 62.93

6.24 Details of Income Tax Assets and Income Tax Liabilities 
Particulars        As at 31 March 2025   As at 31 March 2024

  (a) Income tax assets   220.04 143.30

 (b) Current income tax liabilities   188.73 130.47

  Net Asset (a-b)  31.30 12.83
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Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Domestic Sales   9564.68 8363.09

Export Sales   855.59 850.77

Total    10420.27 9213.86

6.25   Revenue from Operations

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest Income*   56.47 38.79

Rent     6.66 7.55

Net Gain on Disposal of Tangible Asset   0.04 22.48

Provisions no longer required written back   6.26 1.79

Liability no longer required written back   0.66 3.24

Export Incentives   4.01 4.32

Gain on Derecognition of Lease assets and Liabilities   0.27 5.85

Total    74.37 84.02

6.26   Other Income

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(a) Raw Material and Packing Material

Opening Stock of Material   1505.74 2271.37

Add : Purchases   6522.82 4670.70

      8028.56 6942.07

Less: Closing Stock of Materials   2036.99 1505.74

Sub - Total (a)  5991.57 5436.34

(b) Mining Material    

Opening Stock of Material   3.51 2.95

Add : Purchases   177.95 197.58

      181.46 200.54

Less: Closing Stock of Materials   4.45 3.51

Sub - Total (b)  177.00 197.03

Total (a+b)  6168.58 5633.37

6.27    Cost of materials consumed

*Includes interest income on deposits, staff advances, employee loans and delayed payments
from customer
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Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Purchases of Stock in trade   49.55 95.41

Total    49.55 95.41

6.28   Purchases of Stock in trade

6.29   Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and Stock in Trade

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade    

Inventory at the beginning of the year     

Finished Goods   446.43 564.21

Stock in Trade   192.86 73.12

Sub Total (a)   639.29 637.33

Less: Inventory at the end of the year     

Finished Goods   553.43 446.43

Stock in Trade   49.58 192.86

Sub Total (b)   603.01 639.29

Total    36.28 (1.96)

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Salary, Wages Bonus & Allowances   886.37 711.80

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds   59.35 57.09

Managerial Remuneration   22.59 16.55

Staff Transportation Expense   21.22 21.00

Staff Welfare Expenses   19.13 16.39

Total    1008.67 822.84

6.30   Employee Benefit Expense

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest  on Working Capital Loans   101.66 137.31

Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost   53.59 46.69

Interest on Lease Liability   27.26 33.78

Recovery for Contravention of Santion Terms   0.0 105.88

Recovery of Contractual Liability   0.0 5.60

Other Borrowing Costs   43.04 52.03

Total    225.55 381.29

6.31   Finance Costs
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  (₹  in lakhs )

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 5.03)   101.16 102.13

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5.04)   1.45 2.56

Amortisation of Right of use assets (refer note 5.04)   141.29 137.93

Total    243.90 242.62

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Note 6.33.1    

Manufacturing Expenses      

 Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts  126.06 89.91

 Power and Fuel  442.65 235.31

  Rent-Factory  400.73 423.12

 Repairs :    

  Buildings  37.60 5.28

  Plant and Machinery  46.14 54.28

  Other Manufacturing & Factory Expenses  33.17 33.41

  Laboratory Expenses  20.84 18.75

  Security Service Charges  48.38 50.41

  Shifting Charges  24.43 24.17

  Factory Expenses Others  23.68 15.79

  Sub-Contracting Charges  0.0 3.80

 Sub Total   1203.67 954.24

Note 6.33.2    

Administrative & Other Expenses    

    Rent-Office  0.24 1.27

    Rates & Taxes  12.39 12.46

    Insurance  12.89 10.75

    Post, Telephone & Courier  10.09 8.70

    Printing and Stationary expenses  4.40 4.35

    Legal, Licenses and Renewal expenses  1.56 1.79

    Software and Computer Maintenance   5.35 5.32

    Travelling & Conveyance   18.34 11.16

    Vehicle Running & Maintenance  6.68 13.22

6.32   Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

6.33   Other Expenses
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   Professional Fees  39.64 51.18

   Auditors Remuneration  4.50 5.35

   Directors Sitting Fees  3.20 4.60

   Fixed Asset Written Off                              -    0.16

   Donation                              -    0.11

   Remission of Debit balance   0.80 1.69

   Corporate Social Responsibility Expense  12.32 10.50

   Miscellaneous Expenses  31.67 28.29

   Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions    6.04 0.99

 Sub Total   170.11 171.87

Note 6.33.3    

Marketing, Selling & Distribution Expenses :    

Selling Expenses    

   Travelling Expenses  95.45 50.41

   Sales Commission  16.44 12.29

   Bad Debts  0.0 0.0

   Provision for Doubtful Debts  (2.08) 0.33

   Rent-Godown  8.68 7.92

   Royalty  298.29 264.01

   Other Selling  Expenses  11.36 8.01

Distribution Expenses    

 Freight and Logistic Expenses ( Domestic )  103.44 69.33

 Freight and Logistic Expenses ( Export )  63.57 48.51

 Service Tax   0.0 0.0

 Export Expenses  16.59 16.10

 Sub Total   611.73 476.93

 Total    1985.52 1603.04

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(a) As Auditors  4.50 3.50

(b) For Taxation Matters  0.90 0.90

(c) For Other Services  0.0 0.95

Total    5.40 5.35

Note 6.33.4    Payment to Auditors
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Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Current Tax    

(a) Current income tax   188.73 130.47

(b) Short/(Excess) provision of income tax in respect of previous years  2.29 50.75

(c)  Deferred tax benefit  28.43 15.64

Tax Expense for the year (a+b+c)  219.45 196.8

6.34   Income Taxes

(a)Income tax expense/(benefit) recognised in the statements of profit and loss
Income tax expense recogniged in the statements of profit and loss consists of the following:

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Tax effect on actural gains/losses on defined benefit obligation 1.12 (1.28)

Tax effect on gains/losses on Share issue expense  0.0 0.0

Total Income Tax Expense/(Benefit) recognized in the equity  1.12 (1.28)

(b) Income tax Expences/(benefit) Recognised directly in equity  
Income tax expense/(benefit) recognised ditectly in equity consist of the following:

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Profit before income tax  776.61 521.26

Enacted tax rate in india  25.17% 25.17%

Tax at statutory income tax rate   195.46 131.19

Effect of:    

Non Deductible Expense for tax purposes:    

Disallowable Expenses  (6.72) (0.72)

Income tax expense of earlier years  2.29 50.75

Income tax on Capital Gain  0.0 0.0

Current Tax Provision  191.02 181.22

Earlier year's tax    

Increase/ (Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liability   28.43 15.64

Deferred Tax Provision   28.43 15.64

Income Tax Expense  219.45 196.87

Effective tax rate  28.26% 37.77%

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate  
The following is a reconciliation of the Comapany's effective tax rates for the years ended 
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
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6.35   Statement of other comprehensive income

6.36   Earning Per Share

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income    

Fair value of unquoted investments - Gain /(Loss)    

Tax impact on unquoted investments    

Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans    

Actuarial gains and losses - Gain /(Loss)  (4.44) 5.10

Tax impact on Actuarial gains and losses  1.12 (1.28)

Total (i)   (3.32) 3.81

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  0.0 0.0

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss - Gain /(loss)  0.0

Total (ii)   0.0 0.0

Total (i+ii)  (3.32) 3.81

Particulars       For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Profit for the year (Profit attributable to equity shareholders)  557.16 324.40
(Amount In ₹) 

Weighted average number of ordinary equity shares for  8,970,020                               8,970,020
Basic EPS (in Nos.) 

Weighted average number of ordinary equity shares for  8,970,020                               8,970,020
Diluted EPS (in Nos.)  

Face Value of equity share (₹)                              10                                           10 

Basic EPS (₹)                           6.21                                        3.62 

Diluted EPS (₹)                           6.21                                        3.62 

Earnings per equity share of FV of Rs 10 each 
 
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders 
of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the 
weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive 
potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
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B) CONTINGENT ASSETS

 The company is having certain claims which are pursuing through legal processes. The 
Management believe that probable outcome in all such claims are uncertain. Hence, the 
disclosure of such claims is not required in the financial statements.

6.37   Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets And Capital Commitments  
         
A) Contingent Liabilities

Particulars       As at   As at
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Contingent Liabilities      

(a) Statutory claims (Refer Note 6.37.1)  44.10 44.10

(b) Bank Guarantees and Letter of Credits outstanding   308.10 325.45

Commitments    

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on  .0.0 0.0
capital account and not provided for (Net of Advance Payment)

Total    352.20 369.54

Note 6.37.1   Contingent Liabilities - Statutory claims
         
A) Contingent Liabilities

Particulars       As at   As at
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Demand of Sales Tax and Value Added Tax under  37.22 37.22
Gujarat Value Added Tax Act, 2003

GST      6.88 6.88

Demand of Income Tax   NIL NIL
(Net of Refund adjusted and paid under protest)

Total    44.10 44.10

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets
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6.38   Financial instruments – Fair values and Risk Management
 
A) Accounting classification and fair values

Financial assets measured
at amortised cost           

Investments (Non-current)  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other Financial Assets  0.0 0.0 652.04 652.04 0.0 0.0 652.04 652.04

Loans (Current)  0.0 0.0 7.50 7.50 0.0 0.0 7.50 7.50

Trade receivables  0.0 0.0 1284.33 1284.33 0.0 0.0 1284.33 1284.33

Cash and cash equivalents  0.0 0.0 650.81 650.81 0.0 0.0 650.81 650.81

Other bank balances  0.0 0.0 357.95 357.95 0.0 0.0 357.95 357.95

    0.0 0.0 2952.63 2952.63 0.0 0.0 2952.63 2952.63

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

Non current borrowings  0.0 0.0 471.01 471.01 0.0 471.01 0.0 471.01

Current borrowings   0.0 0.0 2582.70 2582.70 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Trade payables  0.0 0.0 683.38 683.38 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other financial liabilities  0.0 0.0 403.51 403.51 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total    0.0 0.0 4140.61 4140.61 0.0 471.01 0.0 471.01

March 31, 2025 FVTPL FVTOCI
Amortised

Cost Total

Level 1 -
Quoted

price
in active
markets

Level 2 -
Significant

observable
inputs

Level 3 -
Significant

un-
observable

inputs Total

Carrying amount  Fair value 

Financial assets measured
at amortised cost           

Investments (Non-current)  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other Financial Assets  0.0 0.0 193.54 193.54 0.0 0.0 193.54 193.54

Loans (Current)  0.0 0.0 7.32 7.32 0.0 0.0 7.32 7.32

Trade receivables  0.0 0.0 1038.91 1038.91 0.0 0.0 1038.91 1038.91

Cash and cash equivalents  0.0 0.0 728.04 728.04 0.0 0.0 728.04 728.04

Other bank balances  0.0 0.0 613.18 613.18 0.0 0.0 613.18 613.18

    0.0 0.0 2580.98 2580.98 0.0 0.0 2580.98 2580.98

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

Non current borrowings  0.0 0.0 47.85 47.85 0.0 47.85 0.0 47.85

Current borrowings   0.0 0.0 1520.07 1520.07 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Trade payables  0.0 0.0 264.61 264.61 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other financial liabilities  0.0 0.0 735.01 735.01 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total    0.0 0.0 2567.54 2567.54 0.0 47.85 0.0 47.85

March 31, 2025 FVTPL FVTOCI
Amortised

Cost Total

Level 1 -
Quoted

price
in active
markets

Level 2 -
Significant

observable
inputs

Level 3 -
Significant

un-
observable

inputs Total

Carrying amount  Fair value 

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets
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 # Fair value of financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortized cost is not 
materially different from the carrying value (i.e.amortized cost).

        
 Level 1 :  

 Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
        
 Level 2: 

 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, 
traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques 
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on 
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are 
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

        
 Level 3: 

 If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in 
level 3.

 * For certain investments categorized under level 3, cost has been considered as an 
appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value 
measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

        
B Financial risk management       
        
 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:  

 
 * Credit risk ;        
 * Liquidity risk ; and        
 * Market risk        
        
i Risk management framework       
        
 The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and 

oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company has a well-define 
Risk Management framework for reviewing the major risks and taking care of all the 
financial risks. The risk management framework aims to :

a.  create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and 
interest rate fluctuation on company's business plan.

b.  achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the 
expected earning in advance.

 Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in 
market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

 The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the 
company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the 
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit 
committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both 
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of 
which are reported to the audit committee. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees 
policies for managing each of these risks.

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets



Corporate
Information

From The
Managing
Director’s Desk

Notice of The
Annual General
Meeting

Financial
Performance

Board’s
Report

Report On
Corporate
Governance

Independent
Auditor’s
Report

120

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

ii.  Liquidity risk     
     
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations 

associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another 
financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under 
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 
damage to the Company’s reputation.

 The Company maintains the following lines of credit outstanding:

(a) The company has also accepted deposit from share holders amounting to Rs. 439.25 Lakhs  
as at March 31, 2025 (at amortised cost) of unsecured nature. Interest would be payable at 
the rate of varying from  7.00 % - 10.00%.  ‘

(b)   For maintaining working capital liquidity company avails cash credit limit from bank that is 
secured as mentioned in Note 6.19.1. The amount availed as at March 31, 2025 is Rs. 2296.82 
Lakhs (at amortised cost). The said loan is having rate of interest of 8.15% to 8.75%

     
Exposure to liquidity risk     
     
 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the 

reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and exclude the impact of 
netting agreements.

6.38   Financial instruments – Fair Values and Risk Management (continued)

 March 31, 2025     Carrying Less than   1-5 Years  More than Total
      amount 12 months   5 Years

Non current borrowings  471.01 0.0 471.01 0.0 471.01

Current financial liabilities  2582.70 2582.70 0.0 0.0 2582.70

Trade and other payables  683.38 683.38 0.0 0.0 683.38

Other current financial liabilities  403.51 403.51 0.0 0.0 403.51

     4140.61 3669.59 471.01 0.0 4140.61

Contractual cash flows

 March 31, 2024     Carrying Less than   1-5 Years  More than Total
      amount 12 months   5 Years

Non-derivative financial liabilities         

Non current borrowings  47.85 0.0 47.85 0.0 47.85

Current financial liabilities  1520.07 1520.07 0.0 0.0 1520.07

Trade and other payables  264.61 264.61 0.0 0.0 264.61

Other current financial liabilities  735.01 735.01 0.0 0.0 735.01

     2567.54 2519.69 47.85 0.0 2567.54

Contractual cash flows

The gross inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows relating to non-derivative financial liabilities held for risk management 
purposes and which are not usually closed out before contractual maturity.

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets
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6.38   Financial instruments – Fair Values and Risk Management (continued)

iv.  Market risk    
     
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity 
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and 
FVTOCI investments.

    
a)  Currency risk
    
 The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Company have transaction of 

import of materials, other foreign expenditures and export of goods. Hence the company is 
exposed to currency risk on account of payables and receivables in foreign currency. 
Company have outstanding balances in USD & EURO.

Sensitivity analysis    
    
 Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower Exchange rate of currency. A possible 5% change in 

exchange rate would affect profit/loss at the reporting date by amount shown below:

As at March 31, 2025

b) Interest rate risk   
    
 Interest rate risks is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable 

interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the Company's 
cash flows as well as costs. The Company's interest rate exposure is mainly related to debt 
obligation. On period under review the Company have term loans at fixed rate and has not 
entered into interest rate swaps for its exposure to long term borrowings at floating rate. The 
company have accepted deposits from share holders which are fixed rate instruments. 

Details of foreign currency Transactions and balances       As at   As at
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Trade and Other Payables USD    167.25 44.06

Trade Receivables and advances USD   182.36 131.64

Bank Balance in EEFC Account USD     15.11 46.78

Details of foreign currency       Profit or (Loss)   Equity (net of tax)
Transactions and balances 5% increase  5 % Decrease 5% increase  5 % Decrease
        
Trade and Other Payables (8.36)  8.36 (6.26)  6.26

Trade Receivables and advances 9.12  (9.12)  6.82  (6.82)

Bank Balance in EEFC Account 0.76  (0.76)  0.57  (0.57)

Details of foreign currency       Profit or (Loss)   Equity (net of tax)
Transactions and balances 5% increase  5 % Decrease 5% increase  5 % Decrease
        
Trade and Other Payables (2.20)  2.20 (1.65)  1.65

Trade Receivables and advances 6.58  (6.58) 4.93  (4.93)

Bank Balance in EEFC Account 2.34  (2.34) 1.75  (1.75)

As at March 31, 2024

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets
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Interest bearing instruments       As at   As at
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Non current - Borrowings   756.89 93.90

Current portion of Long term borrowings   133.20 380.82

Total      890.09 474.72

Sensitivity analysis    
    
 Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of 

change in interest rates
    
 Based on the composition of  debt a reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in 

interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) Equity and Profit or 
Loss by the amount shown below:

c)  Commodity Price Risk    
    
 Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuation in prices of raw Material and other 

consumables. The company has risk management framework aimed at prudently 
managing the risk arising from the volatility in commodity prices and freight costs.

 The company's commodity risk is managed centrally through well established trading 
operations and control processes.

    
d) Equity Price Risk    
    
 The Company do not have any investment in quoted equity shares hence not expose to 

equity price risk.

       Profit or (Loss)   Equity (net of tax)
Particulars 100 bp Increase  100 bp decrease 100 bp Increase  100 bp decrease
        
March 31, 2025        

Non current - Borrowings (7.57)  7.57 (5.66)  5.66

Current portion of Long term borrowings (1.33)  1.33 (1.00)  1.00

Total (8.90)  8.90 (6.66)  6.66

March 31, 2024        

Non current - Borrowings (0.94)  0.94 (0.70)  0.70

Current portion of Long term borrowings (3.81)  3.81 (2.85)  2.85

Total (4.75)  4.75 (3.55)  3.55

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets
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6.39    Capital Management 

 The Company's objectives when managing capital are to  - safeguard their ability to 
continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders 
and benefits for other stakeholders, and - Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce 
the cost of capital.

   
 The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of the annual 

business plan coupled with long term and short term strategic investments and expansion 
plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from operations, long 
terms and short term bank borrowings and deposits.

   
 The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For 

this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all 
components of equity.

   
 The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.

6.40    Disclosure of Employee Benefits

 The Company has implemented Ind AS - 19 on “Employee Benefits”.

 (A). Provident Fund - Defined Contribution Plan 

 All employees are entitled to provident fund benefits and amount charged to Statement of 
Profit and Loss during the period of 12 months ended is ₹ 40.10 Lakhs (Previous year ₹ 33.99 
Lakhs)

     
 (B). Gratuity - Defined Benefit Plans (payable in future)

 Provision has been made for Gratuity as per Actuarial Valuation. The principal assumptions 
used in actuarial valuation and necessary disclosures are as below:

Particulars       As at   As at
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest bearing borrowings  3186.92 1948.74

Less : Cash and bank balances  (1008.76) (1341.22)

Adjusted net debt  2178.16 607.52

Borrowings  3186.92 1948.74

Total equity  4984.14 4430.31

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio                      0.44                     0.14

Debt equity ratio                      0.64                     0.44

  (₹  in lakhs )

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets



  (₹  in lakhs )

   Assumptions       Gratuity   Gratuity
     31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

A. Discount rate   6.60% 7.20%

   Rate of return on plan assets   6.60% 7.20%

   Salary Escalation   6.00% 6.00%

B. Change in Defined Benefit Obligations      

   Liability at the beginning of the year   43.55 35.11

   Interest Cost   3.11 2.60

   Current Service Cost   12.89 9.75

   Past service cost   0.0 0.0

   Prior year Charge   0.0 0.0

   Due to change in Financial assumptions   2.20 0.92

   Due to change in Demographic assumptions   1.57 0.0

   Due to experience adjustments   3.87 (4.83)

   Benefits Paid   (0.43) 0.0

   Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience adjustment   0.0 0.0

   Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to change in financial estimate  0.0 0.0

  Total Liability at the end of the year    66.76 43.55

C. Change in Fair Value of plan Assets      

  Opening fair Value of plan assets   47.53 24.19

   Interest Income   3.80 2.15

   Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  (0.19) 1.18

   Contributions by employer   10.00 20.00

   Benefits Paid   (0.43) 0.0

   Closing fair Value of plan assets   60.70 47.53

D. Profit and Loss Account for the current Period      

   Current Service Cost   12.89 9.75

   Net Interest Cost   (0.69) 0.45

   Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlements  0.0 0.0

   Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense'   12.20 10.20

   Other Comphrehensive Income for the current Period      

   Components of acturial gain/losses on obligations:      

   Due to change in financial assumptions   2.20 0.92

   Due to change in Demographic assumptions   1.57 0.0

   Due to experience adjustments   3.87 (4.83)

   Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  0.19 (1.18)

   Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income   7.83 (5.10)

E. Balance Sheet Reconciliation      

   Opening Net Liability   (3.97) 10.92

   Employee Benefit Expense   12.20 10.20

   Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income   7.83 (5.10)

   Contributions to Plan Assets   (10.00) (20.00)

   Benefits Paid   0.0 0.0

   Closing Liability/(Assets)   6.06 (3.97)

F. Current/Non-Current Liability :      

   Current*  6.06 (3.97)

   Non-Current   0.0 0.0

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets
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   Assumptions       Gratuity   Gratuity
     31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

A. Discount rate   6.60% 7.20%

   Rate of return on plan assets   6.60% 7.20%

   Salary Escalation   6.00% 6.00%

B. Change in Defined Benefit Obligations      

   Liability at the beginning of the year   43.55 35.11

   Interest Cost   3.11 2.60

   Current Service Cost   12.89 9.75

   Past service cost   0.0 0.0

   Prior year Charge   0.0 0.0

   Due to change in Financial assumptions   2.20 0.92

   Due to change in Demographic assumptions   1.57 0.0

   Due to experience adjustments   3.87 (4.83)

   Benefits Paid   (0.43) 0.0

   Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience adjustment   0.0 0.0

   Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to change in financial estimate  0.0 0.0

  Total Liability at the end of the year    66.76 43.55

C. Change in Fair Value of plan Assets      

  Opening fair Value of plan assets   47.53 24.19

   Interest Income   3.80 2.15

   Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  (0.19) 1.18

   Contributions by employer   10.00 20.00

   Benefits Paid   (0.43) 0.0

   Closing fair Value of plan assets   60.70 47.53

D. Profit and Loss Account for the current Period      

   Current Service Cost   12.89 9.75

   Net Interest Cost   (0.69) 0.45

   Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlements  0.0 0.0

   Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense'   12.20 10.20

   Other Comphrehensive Income for the current Period      

   Components of acturial gain/losses on obligations:      

   Due to change in financial assumptions   2.20 0.92

   Due to change in Demographic assumptions   1.57 0.0

   Due to experience adjustments   3.87 (4.83)

(b) Sensitivity analysis    
    
 Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial 

assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined 
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

 *The Company liability is calculated as expected reduction in contributions for the next 12 
months.

(a)  Amounts recognised in current year and previous year

   Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  0.19 (1.18)

   Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income   7.83 (5.10)

E. Balance Sheet Reconciliation      

   Opening Net Liability   (3.97) 10.92

   Employee Benefit Expense   12.20 10.20

   Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income   7.83 (5.10)

   Contributions to Plan Assets   (10.00) (20.00)

   Benefits Paid   0.0 0.0

   Closing Liability/(Assets)   6.06 (3.97)

F. Current/Non-Current Liability :      

   Current*  6.06 (3.97)

   Non-Current   0.0 0.0

  Particulars       As at   As at
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

A. Gratuity      

   Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation   66.76 43.55

   Fair value of Plan Assets   60.70 47.53

   (Surplus) / Deficit in the plan   6.06 (3.97)

   Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Plan Obligation   7.64 (3.91)

   Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets   0.19 (1.18)

Particulars       As at March 31, 2025   As at March 31, 2025
     Increase Gratuity Decrease Gratuity 

Discount rate (0.5% movement)   64.92 68.71

Salary growth rate (0.5% movement)   68.52 65.27

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) Sensitivity   66.79 66.63

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets
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(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Particulars       As at March 31, 2024   As at March 31, 2024
     Increase Gratuity Decrease Gratuity 

Discount rate (0.5% movement)  41.75 45.49

Salary growth rate (0.5% movement)  45.20 42.00

Expected working lifetime (varied by 2 years)   43.57 43.50

Features of the defined benefit plan Remarks

Benefit offered 15 / 26 × Salary × Duration of Service

Salary definition Basic Salary including Dearness Allowance (if any)

Benefit ceiling Benefit ceiling of Rs.20 Lakhs was applied.

Vesting conditions 5 years of continuous service ( Not applicable in case  
 of death / disability )

Benefit eligibility Upon Death or Resignation / Withdrawal or Retirement

Retirement age 58 years

(c) Gratuity Benefits Plan:

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets
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(b) The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to an 
insurance company. The insurance company in turn manages these funds as per the 
mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the 
permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations. Due to the restrictions in the type 
of investments that can be held by the fund, it may not be possible to explicitly follow an 
asset-liability matching strategy to manage risk actively in a conventional fund.

(c) Expected benefit payments as on March 31, 2024

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

Particulars       As at   As at
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Bank balance   0.00% 0.00%

Policy of insurance   100.00% 100.00%

Others     0.00% 0.00%

Particulars     1-5 years 6-10 years 

Cash flow ( Rs. )   40.08 27.30

Distribution ( in %)   39.00% 26.60%
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(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

(d)  Other Notes:

(i) The expected rate of return on Plan Assets is determined considering several applicable 
factors, mainly the composition of Plan Assets held, assessed risks, historical results of 
return on Plan Assets and the Company’s policy for the Plan Assets management.

(ii) The actuarial valuation takes into account the estimates of future salary increases, 
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the 
employment market. The management has relied on the overall actuarial valuation 
conducted by the actuary.

(C).  Leave Encashment - Defined Benefit Plans (payable in future)\
    
 Provision has been made for Leave Encashment as per Actuarial Valuation. The principal 

assumptions used in actuarial valuation and necessary disclosures are as below:

6.40    Disclosure of Employee Benefits

  Assumptions    Leave Encashment 
    March 31, 2025 

A. Discount rate 6.60%

   Rate of return on plan assets 6.60%

   Salary Escalation 6.00%

B. Change in Defined Benefit Obligations  

   Liability at the beginning of the year 10.46

   Interest Cost 0.74

   Current Service Cost 2.92

   Past service cost 0.0

   Prior year Charge 0.0

   Due to change in Financial assumptions 0.39

   Due to change in Demographic assumptions (3.42)

   Due to experience adjustments (0.02)

   Benefits Paid 0.0

   Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience adjustment 0.0

   Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to change in financial estimate 0.0

   Total Liability at the end of the year  11.05

C. Change in Fair Value of plan Assets  

   Opening fair Value of plan assets                    -   

   Interest Income                    -   

   Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income                    -   

   Contributions by employer                    -   

   Benefits Paid                    -   

   Closing fair Value of plan assets                    -   

D. Profit and Loss Account for the current Period  

   Current Service Cost 2.92

   Net Interest Cost 0.74

   Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlements (3.06)

   Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense' 0.60

   Other Comphrehensive Income for the current Period  

   Components of acturial gain/losses on obligations:  

   Due to change in financial assumptions 0.39

   Due to change in Demographic assumptions (3.42)

   Due to experience adjustments (0.02)

   Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 0.0

   Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (3.06)

E. Balance Sheet Reconciliation  

   Opening Net Liability 10.46

   Employee Benefit Expense 0.60

   Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income  

   Contributions to Plan Assets 0.0

   Benefits Paid 0.0

   Closing Liability/(Assets) 11.05

F. Current/Non-Current Liability :  

   Current* 1.95

   Non-Current 9.10
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(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

  Assumptions    Leave Encashment 
    March 31, 2025 

A. Discount rate 6.60%

   Rate of return on plan assets 6.60%

   Salary Escalation 6.00%

B. Change in Defined Benefit Obligations  

   Liability at the beginning of the year 10.46

   Interest Cost 0.74

   Current Service Cost 2.92

   Past service cost 0.0

   Prior year Charge 0.0

   Due to change in Financial assumptions 0.39

   Due to change in Demographic assumptions (3.42)

   Due to experience adjustments (0.02)

   Benefits Paid 0.0

   Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience adjustment 0.0

   Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to change in financial estimate 0.0

   Total Liability at the end of the year  11.05

C. Change in Fair Value of plan Assets  

   Opening fair Value of plan assets                    -   

   Interest Income                    -   

   Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income                    -   

   Contributions by employer                    -   

   Benefits Paid                    -   

   Closing fair Value of plan assets                    -   

D. Profit and Loss Account for the current Period  

   Current Service Cost 2.92

   Net Interest Cost 0.74

   Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlements (3.06)

   Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense' 0.60

   Other Comphrehensive Income for the current Period  

   Components of acturial gain/losses on obligations:  

   Due to change in financial assumptions 0.39

   Due to change in Demographic assumptions (3.42)

   Due to experience adjustments (0.02)

   Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 0.0

   Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (3.06)

E. Balance Sheet Reconciliation  

   Opening Net Liability 10.46

   Employee Benefit Expense 0.60

   Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income  

   Contributions to Plan Assets 0.0

   Benefits Paid 0.0

   Closing Liability/(Assets) 11.05

F. Current/Non-Current Liability :  

   Current* 1.95

   Non-Current 9.10

*The Company liability is calculated as expected reduction in contributions for the next 12 months.

(a)   Amounts Recognized in current year and previous year

  Particulars    As at 
    March 31, 2025 

A. Leave Encashment  

   Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 11.05

  Fair value of Plan Assets 0.0

  (Surplus) / Deficit in the plan 11.05

  Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Plan Obligation  -   

  Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets  (3.06)

  (₹  in lakhs )
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(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

(b) Sensitivity analysis    
    
 Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial 

assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined 
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan    
     
 Risk to the Plan 
   
 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :    
     
A Actuarial Risk:
    
 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 

following reasons:Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the 
assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher 
than expected.Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than 
assumed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than 
expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of 
cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the 

(c) Leave Encashment Benefits Plan:  
    
 The benefits are governed by the Entity's Leave Policy. The Key features are as under:

Particulars       As at March 31, 2025   As at March 31, 2025
     Increase Gratuity Decrease Gratuity 

DDiscount rate (0.5% movement)  10.72 11.40

Salary growth rate (0.5% movement)  11.40 10.72

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) Sensitivity    10.66 11.48

Features of the defined benefit plan Remarks

Benefit on Retirement Leave Days x Encashment Salary / Leave Denominator

Benefit on Resignation/Withdrawals Not allowed

Benefit on Death Leave Days x Encashment Salary / Leave Denominator

Benefit on Availment Leave Days x Availment Salary / Leave Denominator

Salary definition for Encashment Last drawn Basic Salary

Salary Definition for Availment Last drawn CTC Salary

Encashment during Service Not allowed

Leave Credited Annually 15 Days

Leave Denominator 26 Days

Maximum Accumulation 60 Days

Vesting Condition Not Applicable

Retirement age 58 years

assumed salary growth and discount rate.Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal 
rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be 
paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested 
as at the resignation date.Variability in availment rates : If actual availment rates are higher 
than assumed availment rate assumption then leave balances will be utilised earlier than 
expected.This will result in reduction in leave balances and Obligation.

     
B Investment Risk: 
   
 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 

by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the 
present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide 
fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the 
discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

     
C Liquidity Risk: 
   
 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 

significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company there 
can be strain on the cash flows.

     
D Market Risk: 
   
 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the 

financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. 
The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to 
decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

     
E Legislative Risk:  
   
 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to 

change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Shop and 
Establishment Act, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. 
This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will 
have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

(ii) The Privilege Leave benefits liabilities of the Entity are Unfunded.
 Expected benefit payments as on March 31, 2024
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(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan    
     
 Risk to the Plan 
   
 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :    
     
A Actuarial Risk:
    
 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 

following reasons:Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the 
assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher 
than expected.Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than 
assumed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than 
expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of 
cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the 

(d)  Other Notes:  
     
 (i) The Entity do not have any funding arrangement. They settle the Leave Encashment on 

Pay-N-Go basis.

assumed salary growth and discount rate.Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal 
rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be 
paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested 
as at the resignation date.Variability in availment rates : If actual availment rates are higher 
than assumed availment rate assumption then leave balances will be utilised earlier than 
expected.This will result in reduction in leave balances and Obligation.

     
B Investment Risk: 
   
 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 

by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the 
present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide 
fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the 
discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

     
C Liquidity Risk: 
   
 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 

significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company there 
can be strain on the cash flows.

     
D Market Risk: 
   
 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the 

financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. 
The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to 
decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

     
E Legislative Risk:  
   
 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to 

change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Shop and 
Establishment Act, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. 
This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will 
have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

(ii) The Privilege Leave benefits liabilities of the Entity are Unfunded.
 Expected benefit payments as on March 31, 2024

Particulars     1-5 years 6-10 years 

Cash flow ( Rs. )   6.39         5.07
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(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

6.41   Related Party Transactions

Sr. No. Name of Related Parties Nature of Relationship

1 Mrs. Ilaben Parikh Relative of Key Management Personnel  

2 Shri. Rajesh Parikh Director    

3 Shri. Atil Parikh Managing Directors-Key Management Personnel

4 Mr. Narendra Patel Chief Financial Officer -Key Management Personnel

5 Mr. Aditya Tillu Company Secretary -Key Management Personnel (Upto 30-10-2024)

6 Mrs. Komal Pandey Company Secretary -Key Management Personnel (Form 22-01-2025)

7 Mr. Atul Patel Directors-Key Management Personnel

8 Mr. Sudhir R Parikh Directors-Key Management Personnel

9 20 Microns Limited Holding Company

10 20 MCC Private Limited Common Director and the Subsidiary of the holding company  with effect  
  from August 23, 2018.

11 Eriez Industries Pvt Ltd Director/s of the company are members in Eriez Industries Pvt Ltd

12 Sievert 20 Microns  Joint Venture Company of Holding Company
 Building Materials Pvt Ltd  

13 Dorfner-20 Microns Pvt Ltd  Joint Venture Company of Holding Company 

1 20 Microns Limited     

a Sales of Materials  368.16 333.88

b Sale of Fixed Assets  13.35 268.16

c Service Provided  0.0 0.0

d Rent Paid  405.42 429.25

e Rent Received  6.18 6.18

f Purchase of Goods  684.72 293.74

g Purchase of Fixed Assets  0.19 0.0

h Royalty Paid  298.27 264.01

i Reimbursement of Expenses (Expenses Net)  0.32 0.64

j Reimbursement of Expenses (Income Net)  0.0 0.0

k Purchase of Share  0.0 0.0

l Salary Deputation Received  0.0 0.0

m Salary Deputation Paid  0.0 0.0

n Service Received  0.0 0.0

  Balance as period end     

  Trade Payables  (5.10) 0.0

Sr.
No

Name of Related Party and nature
of transactions Relationship

For the year
ended March

31, 2025

For the year
ended March

31, 2024

Holding
Company 
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(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

2 20 MCC Pvt Limited     

a Sales of Materials  11.78 14.66

b Purchase of Goods  0.0 0.38

c Rent Paid  0.0 0.0

d Rent Received  0.36 0.20

e Job Work Charges Received  0.0 0.0

f Reimbursement Received  1.42 2.53

g Purchase of Goods  0.96  

  Balance as period end     

  Trade Receivables  0.0 27.34

3 Dorfner-20 Microns Private Limited     

a Sales of Materials  109.24 65.98

  Rent Received  0.12 0.12

  Balance as period end     

  Trade Receivables  18.95 6.78

4 Compensation paid to Key Management Personnel:    

  Key Management Personnel    

a Mr. Atil Parikh (Refer Note a below)     

  short-term  employee  benefits *  22.59 16.55

 b Mrs. Ilaben Parikh    

  Interest Paid  2.27 1.20

  Balance as period end  27.27 26.20

c Mr. Aditya Tillu     

  short-term  employee  benefits *   3.04 4.02

d Mr. Ram Devidayal     

  Director Sitting Fees  0.0 1.60

e Mrs.Darsha Kikani    

  Director Sitting Fees  1.60 1.60

f Mr. Sudhir Parikh   

  Director Sitting Fees  0.80 0.80

g Mr. Atul Patel     

  Director Sitting Fees  0.80 0.60

Common
Director and

The subsidiary 
holding 

company

Holding
Company is a

JV of
Company

Director and key 
management 

personnel

Director and key 
management 

personnel

Director and key 
management 

personnel

Director and key 
management 

personnel

Director and key 
management 

personnel

Director and 
relative of key 
management 

Personnel

Company 
Secretary - Key 
management 

Personnel

Notes :      
  *As the liability for gratuity are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the 

amounts mentioned are exclusive of gratuity.



Corporate
Information

From The
Managing
Director’s Desk

Notice of The
Annual General
Meeting

Financial
Performance

Board’s
Report

Report On
Corporate
Governance

Independent
Auditor’s
Report

134

  (₹  in lakhs )

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

Notes:   
 The following are the list of Independent Directors with whom no transaction have been 

occurred during the period  from April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 and Financial Year 2024-25 
other than payment of sitting fees:

   
a)  Mr. Atul Patel    
b)  Mr. Sudhir Parikh   
c)  Mrs. Darsha Kikani    
     
6.42 Segment Reporting    
     
 The Company primarily operates in the segment of Micronized Minerals. The MD/CEO of the 

Company allocate resources and assess the performance of the Company, thus are the 
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the 
business as a one, hence no separate segment need to be disclosed.

 Information about geographical areas 
 
1.  The Company does not have geographical distribution of revenue and hence entitywide 

disclosure is not applicable to the Company.

2.  None of the company's assets are located outside India hence entitywide disclosure is not 
applicable to the Company.    

 
 Information about major customers.
     
Note 6.42.1

 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE  
 Details of Research and development expenses incurred during the year, debited under 

various heads of statement of profit and loss  is given below: 

Particulars      For the year ended   For the year ended
     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Revenue expenditure      

Raw Material Consumption   2.26 18.30

Employee benefit expenses  299.04 242.66

Other expenses      

- Analysis Charges   5.88 8.28

- Laboratory expenses   20.84 18.75

 - Other Manufacturing expenses  67.58 35.09

- Repairs Plant & Machinery   3.44 1.31

- Stores & Spares Consumed   12.00 10.04

- Other Administration expenses  47.21 49.28

Depreciation   25.73 22.63

Total       483.99 406.33
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(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

6.43 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 "Contract with Customers"

Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss and
contracted price

Meaning of the terms:  

*Contract assets : Unbilled revenue if any. (not applicable in our case)

*Contract liabilities : Advance from customers.

Particulars     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Trade receivables  1284.33 1038.91

Contract Assets  Nil Nil

Contract Liabilities    83.60 20.27

Particulars     March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Revenue as per contracted price  10422.18 9270.73

Adjustments     

Discounts  (1.91) (56.87)

Revenue from contract with customers    10420.27 9213.86

Contract Balances   (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

6.44   Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases"

 The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient to account for leases for which 
the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application as short-term leases 
and low-value assets.

         
 Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 

March 31, 2025:

Category of Right of use Assets    Gross Accumulated Carrying
    Block Depreciation Amount 

Buildings     

Balance as at April 01, 2024 444.35 181.56  

Additions 45.69 95.69  

Deletions  0.0 0.0  

Balance as at March 31, 2025  490.04 277.25 212.79

Plant & Machinery      

Balance as at April 01, 2024 143.57 67.27  

Additions  0.0  45.60  

Deletions  0.0   0.0 

Balance as at March 31, 2025 143.57 112.86 30.71
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  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

(i) Entity responsibilities for the governance of the plan  
    
 Risk to the Plan

 Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
 
A Actuarial Risk:

 It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the 
following reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary 
escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality 
rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is 
no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an 
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and 
discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed 
withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. 
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation 
date.

B Investment Risk:

 For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified 
by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, 
the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in 
wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in 
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C Liquidity Risk:

 Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the company 
there can be strain on the cash flows.

D Market Risk:

 Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of 
the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount 
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads 
to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption 
depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of 
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. 

E Legislative Risk: 

 Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of 
Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will 
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have 
to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

  
(ii) The company has participated in Group Gratuity Scheme Plan with SBI Life insurance to 

meet its gratuity liability. The present value of the plan assets represents the balance 
available at the end of the year. 

(a) Composition of the plan assets

 The aggregate depreciation expense amounting to ₹ 141.03 Lakhs on ROU assets is included 
under Depreciation and Amortization Expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 
 The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 

2025:

 The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2025:

Particulars       ₹ in Lakhs  

Current lease liabilities     130.71

Non current lease liabilities      135.61

Particulars       ₹ in Lakhs  

Balance as at April 01, 2024   348.19

Additions   45.69

Finance cost accrued   27.26

Deletions   0.0

Payment of lease liabilities   154.82

Balance as at March 31, 2025      266.31

Monthly Name
of Bank

Particulars of securities
provided

Amount as
per books of

accounts

Amount as
reported

in Monthly
return/

statement

Amount
of

difference

Reason for
material

discrepancies

6.45 Borrowing based on security of current assets

Apr-24 4098.76 4036.62 62.14

May-24 4182.24 4150.24 31.99

Jun-24 4783.52 4709.34 74.19

Jul-24 4284.09 4150.90 133.20

Aug-24 4357.83 4321.80 36.03

Sep-24 4433.06 4322.26 110.80

Oct-24 4745.45 4700.69 44.76

Nov-24 4450.82 4406.38 44.44

Dec-24 5039.38 4812.78 226.60

Jan-25 4621.74 4578.26 43.48

Feb-25 4764.16 4723.59 40.58

Mar-25 4851.78 4697.52 154.26

HDFC
Bank

Limited

plot no 9,10 and
11 GIDC Industrial Area,

Waghodia.Dist.Vadodara
Gujarat-391760

1. Company has 
not consider 
Related party 
in Accounts 
receivable 
while 
submitting 
stock 
statement to 
Bank

2. Goods in 
transit not 
included in 
stock 
statement                      

3. Re-group 
debtors and 
creditors in 
Balance sheet 
for advances
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  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

Monthly Name
of Bank

Particulars of securities
provided

Amount as
per books of

accounts

Amount as
reported

in Monthly
return/

statement

Amount
of

difference

Reason for
material

discrepancies

Apr-23 2499.32 2458.95 40.37

May-23 2316.37 2276.33 40.03

Jun-23 2945.54 2919.32 26.22

Jul-23 2950.82 2893.70 57.13

Aug-23 3052.87 3026.82 26.06

Sep-23 563.56 541.42 22.13

Oct-23 3033.98 2969.79 64.18

Nov-23 2964.82 2925.14 39.68

Dec-23 3388.31 3080.24 308.06

Jan-24 3244.30 3198.22 46.08

Feb-24 3043.28 3006.57 36.71

Mar-24 3126.30 3103.78 22.52

Bank
of

Baroda

plot no 9,10 and
11 GIDC Industrial Area,

Waghodia.Dist.Vadodara
Gujarat-391760

1. Company has 
not consider 
Related party 
in Accounts 
receivable 
while 
submitting 
stock 
statement to 
Bank  

2. Goods in 
transit not 
included in 
stock 
statement 

3. Re-group 
debtors and 
creditors in 
Balance sheet 
for advances

6.46   Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability 
threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately 
preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The 
areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, 
art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, 
disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been 
formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and 
utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

1.  Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 11.39 9.65

2.  Amount of expenditure incurred  12.32 10.50

3.  Shortfall/(Excess) at the end of the year  (0.93) (0.85)

4.  Total of previous years shortfall  0.0 0.0

5.  Reason for shortfall   Not Applicable  Not Applicable

7.  Details of related party transactions, e.g.,contribution to  Not Applicable   Not Applicable 
 a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
 expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard  

8.  Where a provision is made with respect to a liability  Not Applicable   Not Applicable
 incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the
 movements in the provision during the should be shown
 separately   
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As finance cost increases, DSCR 
rises

Net profit and net worth both 
increases

Profit increases in lower side as 
compared to total assets.

Due to capex increases more 
comapred to sales

Trade receivable increases 
substantially

As creditors increase substantially, 
trade payable to turnover ratio 

decreases

As inventroy increases, ratio is 
comedown as compared to last year

6.47 Ratios  
  
 The ratios for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Particulars March
2025

March
2024

Variance  Remarks

Net worth 4984 4430 13%
(share Capital + Reserves and Surplus -
Misc exp not written off)      

Current Ratio 1.5 2.0 -26%
(current assets/(current liability+deferred
payment credit)      

Quick Ratio 0.7 1.0 -31%
(current assets- inventories)/(current liability+
deferred payment credit)      

Debt Equity Ratio 0.6 0.4 75%
( short term + long term borrowing)/Net Worth      

Book Value per share 55.6 49.4 13%
((share Capital + Reserves and Surplus )
/no of shares)      

Earning Per share 6.2 3.6 72%
(net profit/no of shares)      

Net Profit Ratio 5% 4% 52%
(net profit/Sales)      

Debt Service Coverage ratio 5.5 3.0 84%
( EBDITA /Interest expense)      

Return On Net worth  0.11 0.07 53%
(net profit/net worth*100000)      

Return On Investment 0.08 0.10 -15%
(net profit+interest & finance cost)/total assets      

Assets Turnover Ratio 2.8 3.5 -19%
(sales gross/gross block)

Inventory Turnover Ratio 3.6 3.9 -8%
(sales gross/Inventory)     

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 8.1 8.9 -9%
(sales gross/Trade Receivables)      

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 9.1 21.6 -58%
(purchases/Trade Payables)      

Return on Capital Employed 0.21 0.23 -8%
( EBDITA /( Total Assets-Curr Liabilities) 

Current liabilities increases 
substantially

Current liabilities  (as specially 
creditories, and inventory part of 

current asset increases 
substanially) 

Debt increases due to short term 
and long term borrowing (term 

loan) increases

As Net profit  increases by 72% 

As compared to sales, profit  
increases more

  (₹  in lakhs )

  (₹  in lakhs )

 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as 
at March 31, 2025 on an undiscounted basis:

 Rental expense for short-term leases recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss was
 ₹ 409.64 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Particulars       ₹ in Lakhs  

Less than one year   130.71

One to five years   135.61

More than five years      0.0
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6.48   Additional Regulatory Information Disclosures

1 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 
  
 The Company does not have any Immovable Properties not held in its own name.:plot no 

9,10 & 11 of waghdoia GIDC
         
2  Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)   

 The company has registered HDFC charge with ROC,
         
3 Details of Benami Property held
     
 The company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence no proceedings 
initiated or pending against the company under the said Act and Rules.

         
4 Loans and advances granted to specified person 
    
 There are no loans or advances granted to specified persons namely promoters, directors, 

KMPs and related parties.
         
5 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
     
 The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 

financial year.
         
6 Undisclosed Income 
      
 There is no transaction, which has not been recorded in books of account, that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961.

         
7 Relationship with struck off companies
      
 The company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 

of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

8 Willful Defaulter
       
 The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by Bank or Financial Institution.
         
9 Utilisation of borrowed funds, share premium and other funds
    
 The Company has not given any advance or loan or invested funds from borrowed funds 

or share premium or  any other sources  with the understanding that intermediary would 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or equity identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company as ultimate beneficiaries or provide any 
guarantee or security or the like to on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries. The Company has 

not received any fund from any person or entity with the understanding that the Company 
would directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entity identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiary) or provided any 
guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary.

10 Compliance with number of layers of companies
     
  The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of 

section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
          
6.49    Previous Year Figures
              
 Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to confirm 

to the current year presentation.



Corporate
Information

From The
Managing
Director’s Desk

Notice of The
Annual General
Meeting

Financial
Performance

Board’s
Report

Report On
Corporate
Governance

Independent
Auditor’s
Report

140

1 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 
  
 The Company does not have any Immovable Properties not held in its own name.:plot no 

9,10 & 11 of waghdoia GIDC
         
2  Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)   

 The company has registered HDFC charge with ROC,
         
3 Details of Benami Property held
     
 The company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence no proceedings 
initiated or pending against the company under the said Act and Rules.

         
4 Loans and advances granted to specified person 
    
 There are no loans or advances granted to specified persons namely promoters, directors, 

KMPs and related parties.
         
5 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
     
 The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 

financial year.
         
6 Undisclosed Income 
      
 There is no transaction, which has not been recorded in books of account, that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961.

         
7 Relationship with struck off companies
      
 The company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 

of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

8 Willful Defaulter
       
 The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by Bank or Financial Institution.
         
9 Utilisation of borrowed funds, share premium and other funds
    
 The Company has not given any advance or loan or invested funds from borrowed funds 

or share premium or  any other sources  with the understanding that intermediary would 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or equity identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company as ultimate beneficiaries or provide any 
guarantee or security or the like to on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries. The Company has 

not received any fund from any person or entity with the understanding that the Company 
would directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entity identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiary) or provided any 
guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary.

10 Compliance with number of layers of companies
     
  The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of 

section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
          
6.49    Previous Year Figures
              
 Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to confirm 

to the current year presentation.

Material Accounting Policies 
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our audit report of even date attached
For N C Vaishnav & Co.
FRN - 112712W  
Chartered Accountants

For 20 Microns Nano Minerals Limited 

 Rajesh C. Parikh     Atil C.Parikh 
 Director       Managing Director 
 DIN - 00041610     DIN - 00041712 

CA Jayesh Mehta  Nihad Baluch  Komal Pandey 
Partner  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 
M. No. - 037267   M No. A-37092 

Place - Waghodia, Vadodara  
Date -23rd May, 2025  
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